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THE BEGINNINGS

"HERE'S A CHURCH FOR YOU...Liberal in message and spirit...Democratic in
government and organization...Designed to serve all denominations...It will
provide a church home for Christian people of all backgrounds; a church school
for children of all ages; activities, study and fellowship for modern men and
women helping them to find the true meaning of their lives in these troubled
times."

With these words from the first brochure sent out to people living in the Casas
Adobes area, The Casas Adobes Community Congregational Church began its
introduction in this community. Much work had already been done before the
brochure had ever left the press. In March 1957 a group of members of The
First Congregational Church of Tucson had sought for and obtained "comity "
from The Tucson Council of Churches in the fast growing northern edge of Tucson.
Soon after The Board of Directors of the Congregational Conference of Southern
California and the Southwest together with the Home Board of Missions of the
Congregational Churches of America voted to help support this new church for an
indefinite amount of time. (It might be stated that financial aid was only partial
and extended for only two years and a half-the smallest amount of aid ever given
to a new Congregational church.) But the concerned people in Casas Adobes had
not been inactive.

On May 22, 1958 fourteen people met around the swimming pool of the Joe
Nordale residence, 6775 Casas Adobes Road, to discuss the formation of a new
church. Mr. Earl Brooks was elected chairman of a Steering Committee to bring
their desire for a new church in the Casas Adobes Area into fruition. Subsequent
meetings at the home of the chairman, Mr. Earl Brooks at 6740 Casas Adobes
Drive, expressed the continuing interest in such a church. On June 19, 1958 102
people met at the Brooks' residence to hear Dr. Jesse F. Perrin, Superintendent of
the Congregational Conference of Southern California and the Southwest, explain
the procedures necessary to undertake such a venture and the support and help
that might be expected from the conference.

The first service of worship for the new church was held on Sunday, October
26, 1958 at 11 A.M. in the guest house of the Nordale residence, 6775 Casas
Adobes Road. There were 28 persons in attendance. The worship was led and
the sermon given by Dr. James E. Robinson, pastor of Visitation of the First
Congregational Church, on the subject "This Is Your Life". Dr. Robinson continued
to lead these Sunday worship services until November 16" when Dr. Phillip E.
Gregory, retired minister of the First Congregational Church of Laguna Beach,
California, came to be interim pastor. Immediately Dr. Gregory and his
gracious wife Harriett endeared themselves to the worshippers and attendance
continued to grow. Soon the guest house on the Nordale properties was not
large enough and services were changed to the garage of the Earl Brooks'
residence, 6740 Casas Adobes Drive. Lillian Brooks personally scrubbed and
polished the garage floor each Saturday that worship might be held there the next
day. On Christmas Sunday, December 21, 1958, 104 people were in attendance.

By this time the interested people had formed a temporary organization.



A Church Council held monthly meetings to take care of the business of the growing
church. Members of the Council were: Mr. Earl Brooks, moderator; Mrs. Earl
Brooks, clerk; Mr. Paul J. Hewitt, treasurer; Miss Martha Goodwin, financial
secretary; Mr. D. E. Gamble, chairman of the Trustees; Mr. F. E. Busemann,
chairman of the Diaconate; Mr. Joseph Nordale, chairman of the Building
Committee; Mr. Martin Paulsen, auditor; Mrs. R. E. Busemann, chairman of
Fellowship; Mr. William Haselton, chairman of publicity; and Mrs. C. C. Simons,
coordinator of Women's Work.

Two matters were items of growing concern with the new church. First, a
permanent place to worship had to be found and, second, the choice of the first
regular pastor had to be made. Dr. Gregory had asked to be relieved of his duties by
February 15, 1959 and the garage at the Brooks’ home was fast becoming too small.
On January 5™ Mrs. Joseph Nordale, chairman of the Pastoral Committee, wrote the
Reverend George C. Vance, pastor of the First Congregational Church of Tucson,
inviting him on behalf of the Pastoral Committee and the Church Council to become
the first regular pastor of The Casas Adobes Community Congregational Church. On
January 12 Mr. Vance, in a "letter of intent", stated that his resignation was in the
hands of the Council of The First Congregational Church and if released from his
obligation at First Church he would be pleased to accept the invitation. This release
was granted and he came to the pastorate of the church on February 16, 1959.

The problem of a permanent place to worship and to hold church activities was
also solved about the same time. At a Council meeting held on February 12, 1959,
Dr. William Newman, Director of The Church Building Society of The Congregational
Churches, announced that his board had purchased, in the name of the church, the
Nanini-Nordale properties at 6775 Casas Adobes Road. (Since the church was not
an official organization it could not enter into contract for such properties.) The
Council voted to accept the transaction, and to assume the mortgages covering the
purchase price of $100,000. The seller, Mr. Sam Nanini, gave a $25,000 gift to the
church payable in five years.

And so after a very successful interim pastorate of three months, Dr. Gregory and
his wife Harriett were graciously feted at a farewell party held at the C. C. Simmons
residence on Sunday afternoon, February 15", And on February 17" The Reverend
George C. Vance and his wife Geri and son Arthur David moved into the present
properties. The first service of worship was conducted by Rev. Vance in the living
room of the Nanini apartment on February 22, 1959 at 11 A.M. Sunday School also
met for the first time that Sunday. Three Departments were convened: the
Pre-school, taught by Mrs. Joseph Nordale; grades one through four, taught by Mrs.
W. S. Mason; and grades five through eight led by Mr. William Meteer. The
attendance at Sunday school on that first Sunday was fifteen. However, by April 7t
the records showed that 55 children were enrolled in our Sunday School: 12 in
Pre-school; 17 in grades 1 through 4; and 26 in grades 5 through 8. By that time we
needed a Sunday School superintendent and Mr. William Meteer was appointed to
that capacity.

Another first was the inauguration on March 8™ of a "Coffee Fellowship" held in
the patio of the church at 10:30 A.M. preceding the 11 o'clock service. Mrs. F. E.



Busemann volunteered to head up this activity which has helped so many fine
people get acquainted with our church. On Sunday, April 15", the first meeting of
senior high youth was held and a "Pilgrim Fellowship” established, and the
following Sunday the junior highs wanted to meet, which they did, and the
"Pioneer Fellowship” followed.

For some time the matter of charter membership in the new church was
discussed. Dr. Gregory had appointed a committee to approve an "application for
membership" and the Council had voted to receive "Charter Members" up and
until the Easter Services to be held on Sunday, March 29, 1959. At that time 115
members were received into the fellowship of the new church. A list of these
"Charter Members" of the church is found at the close of this history.

The first official business meeting of the church was held at the conclusion of
the eleven o'clock worship service on Sunday, April 26, 1959. Three matters were
brought before the attention of the membership. The first was a request to
petition the Arizona Association of Congregational Churches for membership into
that organization; the second was the adoption of temporary bylaws; and the
third was the election of officers for the coming year. All three of these matters
were necessary in joining the Association and Conference of the Congregational
Church. Needless to say, these motions were unanimously passed. The officers
elected for the new church were: Moderator, Mr. Earl H. Brooks; Clerk, Mrs. Earl
H. Brooks; Scribe, Mrs. Edward Notesteen; Financial Secretary, Miss Martha
Goodwin; Treasurer, Mr. Paul Hewitt; Auditor, Mr. Martin Paulsen; Historian, Mrs.
William A. Meteer; Chairman of Board of Trustees, Mr. D. E. Gamble; Chairman of
Board of Deacons, Mr. F. E. Busemann; Chairman of Board of Christian Education,
Mr. W. Day; Superintendent of Sunday School, Mr. W. A. Meteer; Chairman of
Committees: Music-Mrs. G. C. Vance, Memorial-Mrs. C. C. McComb, Ushers-Mr. A.
H. Holmberg, Hospitality-Mrs. F. E. Busemann, Publicity-Mr. W. D. Hazelton,
Women'’s Fellowship-Mrs. C. C. Simmons.

The following Sunday, May 3™ was another "Red Letter Day" in the life of the
new organization. The first "Loyalty Sunday” was held at the morning services
where the new members and friends of the church brought their "Declaration of
Intention" cards to the altar. On that Sunday forty pledges were received totaling
$9,296.00 of support for the rest of the year. That afternoon The Casas Adobes
Community Congregational Church of Tucson was received into the Arizona
Association of Congregational Churches. A 6:00 P.M. Buffet Dinner was served
around the swimming pool to assembled delegates and members of the church.
At 8:00 P.M. the Service of Recognition was conducted. The sermon was
preached by The Reverend Culver H. Nelson, pastor of The Church of The
Beatitudes of Phoenix. Other ministers taking part in the service were The
Reverends James Ord, Waldo S. Richards, Arthur Reinhardt, Ceil Hickman, James
E. Robinson, Lester E. Smith, Cecil Prior, John Langenes, and our pastor, the
Reverend George C. Vance.

The hum of activity was somewhat diminished during the heat of the summer,
but the fall saw the church in full swing once more. The Chancel Choir was
organized in early September of 1959 with Mr. T. J. Wilson as its director. Miss



Dorothy Goodwin was our first organist and served until her marriage in October of
1960 to Capt. Alvin Pressley. Mrs. Ralph Manley was appointed organist in the fall
of 1960 and has been with us since. Mrs. William Martin followed Mr. Wilson as
director of our Chancel Choir until she resigned in the spring of 1961. On July 17,
1961 Mr. Reg Redman was interviewed and hired and he too has faithfully
performed his duties since the time of his appointment. In the fall of 1964 a
Junior Choir was organized, a Cherub Choir in the winter of 1967-68; and this fall a
"Bell Choir" has been formed .

On October 25, 1959 the properties of the church were dedicated and the Dr.
Jesse F. Perrin, Superintendent of the Congregational Conference of Southern
California and the Southwest, our sponsoring group, was the speaker. In October of
1959 citrus trees and oleanders were removed east of our properties and an
opening from Oracle Road was made. This work was made necessary in order that
we might have adequate parking.

On November 12™ at the home of Dr. Irving Fovargue the first official meeting
of the Women''s Fellowship was held, with Mrs. Florence Fovargue its first presi-
dent. The records show that the Women’s Fellowship had 43 women in attendance
at its May breakfast in 1960 held at the home of Louise Snyder.

There are many other interesting and amusing things that filled the first official
year of our recorded history, but time and space prohibit their mention. Suffice it to
say that "The Beginnings" were grand and glorious and the path ahead looked to be
one of dedication and service.

THE MIDDLE YEARS

The next six years of our church's history were perhaps not as eventful, but
certainly not less exciting. Every year had its highlights and its accomplishments.
The elected officers of 1960 as well as succeeding years may be ascertained
by checking the Officiary List at the end of this historical brochure. The year 1960
opened with the dedication on January 3" of the new Don Simmons Memorial
organ, given to the church by Mr. and Mrs. Clarence Rand all in memory of their
grandson. This fine Baldwin organ, with two new speakers, now serves so
effectively in our new church. Miss Dorothy Goodwin, our organist, presented
an exceptional organ concert and the service of dedication was led by our
pastor.

Other significant happenings in 1960 were the incorporation of the church as a
non-profit corporation in the State of Arizona on May 17" the acceptance of the
"permanent” (we since have had two other sets) by-laws at a specially called
congregational meeting preceded by a “pot luck" supper on April 22""; and the
purchase of robes for our Chancel Choir.

A significant fact faced the Casas Adobes Community Congregational Church
in May of 1960, that is, the organization of a sister church, Saint Andrew's
Presbyterian, under the leadership of the Rev. Newton White, a resident of the
Casas Adobes area. This was the beginning of other churches coming into the
area and our attempts of coordination and cooperation together.

The year 1961 saw on January 8™ the start of two Sunday worship
services, one at 9:30 A .M. to supplement the original 11 o'clock service. Also our
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first Youth Sunday was held on the fourth Sunday of January. The speeches were
given by John Frannea and Margaret Brownewell, and those leading other
parts of the service were Susie Bring, John Crawford and Anne Brownewell.

Membership in the church continued to grow, with 92 members added in 1960
and 88 in 1961. The growing membership, presented problems of space,
especially in the church school. The manse, office and garage were over-crowded
with children and the living room of the manse was used at least three times a
week for board and committee meetings and choir practices. The officiary of the
church faced the need of more Sunday school space and additional worship area.

Late in 1961 the Trustees voted to clear the deck for action and to present to
the membership a "Funds for the Future” program. The announced goal was to
raise $25,000 in capital funds, payable over a two-year period. Sixteen thousand
five hundred dollars would pay up the first mortgage on our present properties;
$7,000 would be used to expand the sanctuary and $1,500 would be sent to the
Conference for its capital expansion fund. Under the direction of Mr. Fritz
Baseman and a capable committee the drive was launched in February of 1962
and the quota of $25,000 in pledges was obtained.

At the close of 1962 the Trustees also solved the problem of additional room
for our Sunday School. They voted on December 4™, with its O.K. at the Annual
Meeting, to purchase the Clifford Reising property, 1129 West San Martin Drive,
as a home for our pastor at a cost of $24,500. A $5,000 down-payment was made
on the property and in the latter part of January 1963, the Vances moved from
6775 Casas Adobes Road to the present manse making available for Sunday School
use our entire properties .

But circumstances beyond the church's control had slowed the growth of both
Sunday School and membership. From May 1960 to September 1964, six new
churches had moved into the Casas Adobes area. In May 1960, as heretofore
noted, Saint Andrew's Presbyterian Church had been organized and on November
11, 1962 they moved into their new sanctuary on Paseo Del Norte Road. In July of
1961 the Lutheran Church of the Ascension started holding services at Harelson
School and in March of 1964 they were in their new church. In the spring of 1962
the Casas Adobes Baptist (Southern) Church was organized and they built a
church in the fall of 1966. In late 1962 St. Mark’s Methodist Church was moved
from Overton and Thornydale Roads to La Canada and Magee and by November
1966 they had a temporary sanctuary available. On April 22, 1962 The Dove of
Peace Lutheran Church held its first worship service at Cliff Manor and on April 10,
1966 they used for the first time their new properties. While on September 13,
1964 Christ the King Chapel, a mission of St. Philip’s In the Hills Episcopal Church,
convened worship services at Harelson School and moved into their new church
on West Ina Road on September 14, 1965. So, while in 1959 there was but one
church in the Casas Adobes area, there were by 1964 seven churches all asking for
the loyalty and membership of the folk of the area. These developments
drastically changed the growing plans of the church and in 1963 the Trustees
voted not to spend “Funds for the Future” money to expand our present
sanctuary, but to form a permanent Long Term Planning Committee to arrive at a



"Master Plan" for our property development. Mr. Earl Brooks and Mr. Ivan
Culbertson were subsequent chairmen of this committee, first appointed by the
Trustees and later by the Church Council. Serving with them, among others, were
Messrs. D. E. Gamble, Fritz Busemann, James Woodruff, Roy Thornton, Sam Nanini,
Paul Hewitt, Bill Haselton and Doug McComb. Much preliminary work was done
centering around an attempt to purchase land to the north of our properties, but
when that failed to materialize the church instructed a newly elected committee
consisting of Mr. James Woodruff, chairman, Mr. Sam Nanini, Mr. D. E . Gamble,
Mr. Doug McComb, Mrs. Richard Burton and Mrs. D. 0. Shaffer to go ahead with a
Master Facilities Plan and engage an architect for professional consultation.

A small yet significant event happened in the fall of 1962. Two adult study
groups were formed, one on "The Study of The Parables" and the second on "Other
Religions". Each served a helpful and significant role in the life of the church, but it
was from the "Other Religions" group that came the thrust for our new church and
the study which resulted in our new organizational structure. After two years of
interesting study and fellowship highlighted by informational talks on the religious
faiths of the world and the denominations of Christianity, the group decided it was
time to study "Congregationalism"; and so, meeting in the members' homes the
group studied how our church was run and the particular problems we faced as a
congregation. It might be noted some of the guiding lights of this Adult Study
Group were the Joe Biehls, the Harry Claytons, the Floyd Sedimayrs, the George
Vances, the John Rosenbergs, the Ken Lawvers, the Norm Ronnings, the Bill Haucks,
Ivan Culbertson, Louise Elliott, Ruth Anderson and many others.

FULFILLMENT AND FUTURE

Out of the "Other Religions" study group came a "Member’s Attitude Survey'
conducted in our church in the spring of 1966. Financed by an anonymous gift, Dr.
Ralph C. Kauffman of the University of Arizona was engaged to conduct the survey.
A questionnaire designed by Dr. Kauffman was sent to every adult member of the
church. In addition, five cottage meetings were held with attendants representing
a cross-section of church membership. Dr. Kauffman sparked an open, informal
discussion which was recorded on tape. The tapes were sent to Fry Consultants in
Chicago, a firm directed by our own Joe Biehl. Their psychologists analyzed the
tapes and reported their findings to our Board of Trustees. Among the conclusions
arrived at in this study was that 64% of the members suggested new or changed
facilities were required while only 19% thought the present facilities to be
adequate.

The second project of the group was the changing of the organizational
structure of the church. A brochure explaining the proposed changes was made
available to members in the fall of 1966, and at the Annual Meeting Mr. Harry
Clayton, moderator, presented the proposed structural chart through a number of
colored slides. The congregation voted to accept the proposed changes and have
the Articles of Incorporation and the By-laws revised to meet the same. This
matter was officially accomplished at a called meeting of the congregation on June
23, 1968.

Meanwhile, the Long Term Planning Committee was busy formalizing a



"Facilities Plan” to present to the congregation. An architect, John L. Mascarena,
had been employed. On April 4, 1967 their plans were presented to the
congregation. Although the sketch was thought to be too modern and it was
requested that it be more in keeping with our present properties, the members
voted overwhelmingly to go ahead with a building program by floating a mortgage
of not more than $145,000. A proviso for action was voted to be the rising of
$50,000 in cash and pledges. Mr. William Lyle and Mr. William Chandler were
appointed co-chairman of a Finance Committee and on June 10" they reported
that the proviso had been met. On December 1, 1967 the treasurer's report
stated that pledges totaling $64,208, from 118 members and friends had been
received.

Mr. R. R. Secor became chairman of The Building Committee. Twenty-seven
members made up six sub-committees which helped in various ways to make the
new buildings become a reality. Members of The Building Committee were as
follows: R. R. Secor, General Chairman; Architectural Committee: Barton Marshall,
Chairman, Betty Barnes, Ted Gamble, Joe Howe, Jeannette Manley, Lloyd Roberts,
Russ Secor, and Jim Woodruff; Interior Committee: Bea Rigney, Chairman, Fred
Bullard, Fred Johnson, Betty Barker, Reg Redman, Geri Vance, and Jeannette
Manley as liaison from the Architectural Committee. Landscape and Site
Improvement Committee: Howard Franks, Chairman, Dick Burton, Ken Lawver,
Doug McComb and Bill Chandler; Liaison and Public Relations Committee: Marie
Biehl, Chairman and Joe Howe. Mechanical and Electrical Committee: Bernie
Weideman, Chairman, Noel Hartshorne and Bill Schubert. Prime Committee: Russ
Secor Chairman, Betty Barnes, Howard Franks, Bernie Weideman, Marie Biehl,
Bea Rigney and Barton Marshall.

By the end of October 1967 the committees had finished their jobs and on No-
vember 27" bids were received. The next day, November 28'h, the Trustees
awarded the contract to the low bidder, The W. F. Conelly Construction Company.
Demolition of the three old buildings, the office, the apartment and the utility
room, together with the filling of the swimming pool, was done by Gerson
Demolition Company and completed on December 28™. Construction started on
January 10, 1968 and the building was occupied for the first time on Sunday,
August 11, 1968. Groundbreaking ceremonies had been held on Sunday,
December 24th, 1967 following the 9:30 A.M worship service. Besides the
Chancel Choir, those participating in the services included Mr. Harry Clayton,
moderator, Mr. Floyd Sedlmayr, chairman of the Trustees, Mr. Russell Secor,
chairman of the Building Committee, Paul Chandler, president of Pilgrim Fellow
ship, and the pastor, the Rev. George C. Vance.

And so with fine new properties and with the tenth anniversary of our first
worship service being celebrated, The Casas Adobes Community Congregational
Church of Tucson looks to the future. All the fine and interesting past is prelude.
The melody to become God’s people truly begins. We can make of it a glorious
symphony if we will.
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CHARTER MEMBERS

of the

Casas Adobes Community Congregational Church

Mrs. Wm. A. Anderson

Mr. and Mrs. W. R. Bairstow
Mr. and Mrs. Thales Blakeman
Mrs. Royal G. Bouschor

Mr. and Mrs. Alvin Bring

Mr. and Mrs. Earl H. Brooks
Mrs. C. Louise Bryce

Mr. and Mrs. Frederick G. Bullard
Mr. and Mrs. F. E. Busemann
Mrs. Lawrence Cecil

Mr. Ivan Culbertson

Mr. and Mrs. Warren E. Day
Deanna Day

Kathy Day

Mr. and Mrs. Lowell De Weerd
Mr. and Mrs. J.M. Frawley

Mr. and Mrs. T. M. Elliott
Linda Elliott

Mr. and Mrs. lvan E. Estes

Dr. and Mrs. Irwin Fovargue
Mr. and Mrs. D. E. Gamble
Mrs. Ernest G. Goodwin
Dorothy Goodwin

Martha Goodwin

Mr. and Mrs. Grant Hansell
Mrs. F. Bryan Harbour

Mr. and Mrs. W.D. Haselton
Mr. and Mrs. H. M. Heath

Mr. and Mrs. Paul Hewitt

Mr. and Mrs. A. Hillman Holmberg
James Holmberg

Mr. Herbert Humiston

Miss Louise Humiston

Mr. and Mrs. Thomas T. Kelly
Miss Emma L. Keys

Mr. and Mrs. George Lamprey
Andrew Lamprey

Mr. and Mrs. Robert R .Long

Mr. and Mrs. Carl C. McComb
Mrs. S. W. McDermott

Mr. and Mrs. William A. Meteer, Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. W. S. Mason

Mr. and Mrs. Anthon Mottel
Giana Mottel

Susan Mottel

Mr. Sam Nanini

Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Nordale
Judy Nordale

Tom Nordale

Mr. and Mrs. Edward Notesteen
Mr. and Mrs. Martin Paulsen
Mr. and Mrs. Curtis C. Simmons
Jay Simmons

Don Simmons

Dr. and Mrs. Erling A. Smedal
Miss Orvilla Snyder

Miss Patricia Ann Stodghilll

Mrs. John Sullivan

Mr. and Mrs. Maurice B. Sunderland
Mr. and Mrs. R. V. Thornton

Mr. and Mrs. Gary D. Vance
Mrs. George C. Vance

Mr. A. David Vance

Mr. and Mrs. Robert J. Winters
Mr. and Mrs. Barton T. Marshall
Sandra Bauman

Barbara Bouschor

Mrs. John Jenkins

Mr. and Mrs. Harold J. Johnson
Mrs. Jean Norris

Mr. and Mrs. C. B. Randall

Mr. and Mrs. Lee C. Yocum
Barbara Yocum

Mr. and Mrs. Lambert Kautenberger
Mr. and Mrs. T. J. Wilson



